
Agenda  
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BOARD ROOM – 300 B Street 

August 9, 2023 
6:30 p.m. Closed Session 

7:00 p.m. Estimated Open Session 

District LCAP Goals 
 Goal 1 – Biggs Unified will provide conditions of learning that will develop College and Career Ready students. Priority 1, 2 and 7. 
 Goal 2 – Biggs Unified will plan programs, develop plans, and provide data from assessments that will maximize pupil outcomes. Priority 4 and 8.
 Goal 3 – Biggs Unified will promote students engagement and a school culture conducive to learning. Priority 3, 5 and 6. 

OPEN SESSION 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Pgs 4-6 A. June 28, 2023 Special Meeting

CLOSED SESSION 

1. Public Employment Appointment of Personnel as listed under “Personnel Action” below; Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957 

2. Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, and Management Personnel Discipline, Dismissal and/or Release; Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957 

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation of Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, Management and Superintendent;
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 

4. Litigation; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9
5. Instructions to Board Negotiators, Superintendent and Board Member; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6(a)

If Closed Session is not completed before 7:00 p.m., it will resume immediately following the open session/regular meeting. 

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 

6. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION

7. PARENT ASSOCIATIONS REPORTS

8. CLASSIFIED SCHOOL EMPLOYEES ASSOCIATION (CSEA) and BIGGS UNIFIED TEACHERS ASSOCIATION (BUTA) REPORTS

9. STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE REPORTS
A. ASB

B. FFA

10. PUBLIC COMMENT - Anyone wishing to address the Board on items on or off the agenda may do so at this time. No action may
be taken on items that are not listed as Action Items. Comments are limited to 3-5 minutes and 20 minutes each subject matter.

11. REPORTS - Pursuant to the Brown Act: Gov. Code 854950 et.seq. - Reports are limited to announcements or brief descriptions of
individual activities

1



A. ELEMENTARY SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: 

B.   RES/MIDDLE SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: 

C.    HIGH SCHOOL PRINCIPAL’S REPORT: 

D.   M/O/T AND FOOD SERVICE DIRECTOR’S REPORT:  (Will be provided under separate cover) 

E.   SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT: 

Pg 7 F.   CBO’s REPORT: 

G. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

12. CONSENT AGENDA  - All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are routine and will be acted upon by one motion and vote.
If an item needs further clarification and/or discussion, it may be removed from the Consent portion of the agenda and then be
acted upon as a separate item.

Pg 8              A. Approve Inter-District Agreement Request(s) for the 2023-2024 school year

Pgs 9-28       B. Approve AP Vendor Check Register and Purchase Order Listing June 22, 2023 through August 2, 2023 

13. ACTION ITEMS
Pgs 29-37     A. Approve MOU with Tehama County Teacher Induction Program for 2023-2024.  This is funded out of the Educator 

Effectiveness Block Grant 

Pgs 38-75     B. Approve Ag Incentive Grant Application for 2023-2024 

Pgs 76-81     C. Adopt the following New or Updated Board Policies (BP), Admin. Regulations (AR) and Exhibits (E): 

Board Policy 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 
Exhibit(1) 0420.41 - Charter School Oversight 
Board Policy 1113 - District and School Websites 
Exhibit(1) 1113 - District and School Websites 
Board Policy 4112.2 – Certification 
Administrative Regulation 4112.2 – Certification 
Exhibit(1) 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications 
Board Policy 4140/4240/4340 - Bargaining Units 
Administrative Regulation 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
Administrative Regulation 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
Administrative Regulation 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves 
Administrative Regulation 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave 
Board Policy 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance 
Board Policy 5141.5 - Mental Health 
Board Policy 5141.6 - School Health Services 
Administrative Regulation 5141.6 - School Health Services 
Policy 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications 
Exhibit(1) 5145.6 - Parent/Guardian Notifications 
Board Policy 5148 - Child Care and Development 
Administrative Regulation 5148 - Child Care and Development 
Board Policy 6146.4 - Differential Graduation and Competency Standards for Students with Disabilities 
Board Policy 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency Services for Special Education 
NEW - Board Policy 6173.4 - Education for American Indian Students 
DELETE - Administrative Regulation 6173.4 - Title VI Indian Education Program 
Board Policy 6174 - Education for English Learners 
Administrative Regulation 6174 - Education for English Learners 
Board Bylaw 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials 

Pg 82        D.   Adopt Resolution 2023/2024 #01 to change signatories on the BES ASB Self Help Bank Account 

Pgs 83-84   E.   Approve contract with Beverly Landers for Consulting Services for the 2023-2024 school year 
2



Pg 85           F. Approve list of Surplus Vehicles that need to be decommissioned and sold or destroyed 

G. Consumer Confidence Report – Richvale well (Will be provided under separate cover) 

Pgs 86-92    H. Approve Amendment of CBO Contract Salaries and Fringe Benefits for 2023-2025 

Pgs 93-98    I. Approve Agreement with BUTA Bargaining Unit for 2023-2025 including Salary Schedule with Public Disclosure 

Pgs 99-104  J. Approve Agreement with Confidential Classified Unit for 2023-2025 including Salary Schedule with Public Disclosure 

Pgs 105       K.    Approve Certificated Management Public Disclosure for 2023-2025 

Pgs106-109 L.  Approve Project Wayfinder curriculum in the amount of $26,676.25 

Pgs110-113 M.  Approve MWEA MAP Growth curriculum in the amount of $6,337.50 

Pgs114-121 N. Approve purchase from Gopher Spark for digital subscription and equipment in the amount of $19,588.79 from ESSER 
funds 

Pgs122-125 O. Approve Art/Music Block Grant Amended Plan 

Pgs126-129 P. Approve Learning Recovery Block Grant Amended Plan 

Pg 130        Q. Adopt Resolution 2023/2024 #02 to change signatories on the BHS ASB Self Help Bank Account 

Pgs131-136 R. Approve Agreement with CSEA Bargaining Unit for 2023-2025 including Salary Schedule with Public Disclosure 

14. PERSONNEL ACTION
A. Approve hiring Estefania Huerta as a First Grade Teacher at BES effective 8/7/2023

B.     Approve hiring Lilly Baker as the Ag Science Teacher at BHS effective 8/7/2023.  Lilly Baker will be a paid Intern through
California State University, Chico 

Pgs137-138 C.    Approve Agriculture Teacher Extended Year Agreement with Lilly Baker 

Pgs139-140 D. Approve Agriculture Teacher Extended Year Agreement with Stephen Boyes 

E. Approve hiring Joelle Proper as a Sixth Grade Teacher at BES effective 8/7/2023.  Joelle Proper will be a paid Intern through 
California State University, Chico 

F. Approve hiring Francisca Romero Avina as a Substitute Classified Custodian 

G. Approve hiring Cynthia Montes as a Substitute Classified Custodian 

H. Approve hiring Greg Capshew as a Districtwide Light Maintenance/Custodian/Groundsperson 

I. Accept resignation of Kathleen Smith effective September 22, 2023 

15. INFORMATION ITEMS
Pgs141-153 A. Actuarial Valuation 

Pg 154          B. 2023-2024 Calendar change 

C.   Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints – No complaints were filed with any school in the district during the last    
quarter 

16. FUTURE ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION

17. ADJOURNMENT
3



Minutes 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
BOARD ROOM – 300 B Street 

June 28, 2023 
5:00 p.m. Open Session 

OPEN SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER – Vice President Atteberry called the meeting to order at 5:06 p.m. 

ROLL CALL - Board members present: Melissa A. Atteberry, Jonna Phillips, and Sean Avram were 
present.  Board members absent: Linda Brown and M. America Navarro. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Vice President Atteberry lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

The Board approved the agenda with the following additions:  MSCU (Phillips/Avram) 3/0/2 

Brown – Absent       Atteberry – Aye  Navarro – Absent             Phillips – Aye Avram – Aye 

Add Action Item 9F:  Approve purchase of desks, tables, and chairs from VIRCO for $108,499.49 

Personnel Action Item 10A:  Amend line to say, “Kameron Smith will be hired on a Short Term 
Staff Permit”. 

Add Personnel Action Item 10C:  Approve hiring Brady Smith as Student Summer Help. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The Board approved the minutes from the Regular Board Meeting on June 14, 2023 as written.  MSCU 
(Phillips/Avram) 3/0/2 

Brown – Absent    Atteberry – Aye           Navarro – Absent       Phillips – Aye      Avram – Aye 

PUBLIC COMMENT- None 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Board approved Consent Agenda Items A and B.  MSCU (Avram/Phillips) 3/0/2 

Brown – Absent        Atteberry – Aye  Navarro – Absent        Phillips – Aye  Avram – Aye 

A. Approve Inter-District Agreement Request(s) for the 2023-2024 school year. 

B. Approve Purchase Order and Vendor Warrants – April 1, 2023 through June 21, 2023 

Item 5 A

4



REPORTS 

A.  SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – The paving job at the high school is almost complete.  Fairbanks 
Paving wants to make improvements to the water flow at no charge.  They went above and beyond 
their contract for fixes.  Water filling stations are being installed.  Fencing starts going up July 1st.  
Summer School attendance has been between 48-60 on average.  Three new teachers will be 
teaching the second session.  The First Grade and SDC Teacher positions are still open.  We may have 
to look at closing the SDC program and work with SELPA to place students.  There is currently a 
countywide shortage of SPED teachers.  We are interviewing for the Ag Teacher position at the high 
school next week.  There is a statewide Ag teacher shortage.  Fourth of July celebrations will be on 
our football field.  Mr. Kaelin is working with the city to ensure the event goes smoothly.  A few 
teachers are going through curriculum to determine whether or not we need to order more supplies.  
Go Math will extend our current adoption.  Student Summer Help hired is focusing on the walnut 
orchard maintenance.  Custodial and ground personnel is working projects around the kids being on 
campus for Summer School.  It will be tricky getting the fencing and playground projects done with 
student on campus.  The Intervention Room at BES will be turned into a Conference Room. 

B.  BOARD MEMBER REPORTS – None. 

ACTION ITEMS: 

The Board approved Action Items A through F.  MSCU (Avram/Phillips) 3/0/2 

Brown – Absent         Atteberry – Aye          Navarro – Absent  Phillips – Aye Avram – Aye 

A. Approve the 2023-2024 LCAP Plan  

B. Adopt Original Budget for 2023/2024 

C. Adopt LCFF Local Indicators  

D.  Approve the 2023-2024 Certification of Assurances 

Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year.  A complete list of legal 
and program assurances for the fiscal year can be found at: 
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca22assurancestoc.asp  Attached is the Consolidated 
Application for Spring Data Collection. 

E. Approve Butte County Office of Education Contract Services Agreement 

F.  Approve purchase of desks, tables, and chairs from VIRCO for $108,499.49 

PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS: 

The Board approved Personnel Action Items A-C.  MSCU (Phillips/Avram) 3/0/2 

5

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca22assurancestoc.asp


Brown – Absent        Atteberry – Aye  Navarro – Absent     Phillips – Aye Avram – Aye 

A. Approve Kameron Smith as Sixth Grade Teacher at Biggs Elementary School.  Kameron Smith 
will be hired as an Intern in partnership with California State University, Chico on a Short Term 
Staff Permit. 

B.       Approve Caleb Johnson as Third Grade Teacher at Biggs Elementary School 

C.       Approve hiring Brady Smith as Student Summer Help 

INFORMATION ITEMS – None 

FUTURE ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION – None 

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 5:27 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION 

1. Public Employment Appointment of Personnel as listed under “Personnel Action” below; Pursuant
to Government Code Section 54957

2. Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential, and Management Personnel Discipline, Dismissal
and/or Release; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957

3. Public Employee Performance Evaluation of Classified, Certificated, Classified Confidential,
Management and Superintendent; Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957

4. Instructions to Board Negotiators, Superintendent and Board Member; Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54957.6(a)

5. Litigation; Pursuant to Government Code Sections 54956.9

Closed Session was adjourned at 6:25 p.m. and reconvened to Open Session at 6:25 p.m. 

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION – Vice President Atteberry announced that 
the Superintendent was given directions on negotiations with bargaining units. 

ADJOURNMENT – 6:25 p.m. 

MINUTES APPROVED AND ADOPTED: 

_____________________________________ ____________________________ 
Presiding President Date 

Distribution:  Board of Trustees, Superintendent, Elementary School Principal, Financial Officer/Administrative  Advisor, BUTA and CSEA 
Presidents, Student Representative, Student Government Class, Gridley Herald, District Office and Schools for Posting, and Official Record. 

6



Allocation Expended Encumbered Balance Remarks
ESSER II 1,056,308       966,370 89,938                (0.0) 9/30/2023
ESSER III 2,374,519       418,605 1,093,626           862,288            9/30/2024
ELO Grant 214,717          103,252 13,181                98,284              9/30/2024
Educator Effectiveness 161,303          9,049 35,000                117,254            6/30/2026
A-G Completion 150,000          - 20,371                129,629            6/30/2026
ELOP 445,851          67,468 190,922              187,461            on going
Kitchen Infrastructure/Training 172,622          172,622            6/30/2025
Arts, Music, Instr. Mat 310,873          - 95,500                215,373            6/30/2026
Learning Recovery 624,461          - 50,000                574,461            6/30/2028
Prop 28 Art Education Funding 81,379            - - 81,379              TBD

TOTAL 5,592,033$     1,564,744$    1,588,538$          2,438,751$        

Expenditure Timeline
9/30/2024 960,573          
6/30/2025 172,622          
6/30/2026 462,256          
6/30/2028 574,461          
On-going 187,461          
TBD- new 81,379            
Total 2,438,751$     

Remarks:
ESSER III- Plan deadline 9/30/2023
Learning Recovery- reduction of future apportionment by $105,050

CBO REPORT
One-time Funds Update

As of 8/1/2023

Item 11 F

7



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Meeting Date:  August 9, 2023 

Item Number: 12 A 
Item Title: Inter-district Agreement Request(s) 
Presenter:   Doug Kaelin, Superintendent & Loretta Long, Admin. Assistant/HR Officer 
Attachment:   None 
Item Type:   [X] Consent Agenda  [ ] Action  [ ] Report  [ ] Work Session   [ ] Other: 

Background/Comments: 

We have received the following interdistrict transfer requests.  After reviewing each one with Board Policy and 
Administration Regulations 5117, we make the following recommendations.   

2023-2024 School Year From: To: Action New/Ongoing: 

1. (2nd Grade) Princeton Biggs Accept Ongoing 
2. (7th Grade) Palermo Biggs Accept Ongoing 
3. (4th Grade) Palermo Biggs Accept Ongoing 
4. (8th Grade) Oro Elementary Biggs Accept Ongoing 
5. (7th Grade) Oro Elementary Biggs Accept New 
6. (8th Grade) Oro Elementary Biggs Accept Ongoing 
7. (7th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
8. (11th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
9. (Kindergarten) Gridley Biggs Accept New 
10. (1st Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
11. (10th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
12. (5th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
13. (3rd Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
14. (2nd Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
15. (10th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
16. (5th Grade) Gridley Biggs Accept Ongoing 
17. (Kindergarten) Biggs Brittan Release New 
18. (12th Grade) Biggs Live Oak Release Ongoing 
19. (3rd Grade) Biggs Live Oak Release Ongoing 
20. (5th Grade) Biggs Live Oak Release New 
21. (7th Grade) Biggs Oro Elementary Release Ongoing 
22. (12th Grade) Biggs Gridley Release Ongoing 
23. (12th Grade) Biggs Gridley Release Ongoing 
24. (4th Grade) Biggs Gridley Release Ongoing 
25. (2nd Grade) Biggs Gridley Release Ongoing 
26. (8th Grade) Biggs Gridley Release Ongoing 
27. (Kindergarten) Biggs Gridley Release New 
28. (10th Grade) Biggs Gridley Release New 
29. (Kindergarten) Biggs Gridley Release New 
30. (8th Grade) Biggs Gridley Deny New 
31. (10th Grade) Biggs Gridley Deny New 

Fiscal Impact:  We will have a loss of ADA for those outgoing transfer requests and an increase of ADA for those 
incoming transfer requests. 

Recommendation:   The Superintendent recommends action as indicated.  

8



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Meeting Date: August 9, 2023 

Item Number: 12 B 

Item Title: Approve AP Vendor Check Register and Purchase Order Listing 

Presenter: Moneek Graves, Fiscal Assistant 

Attachment: AP Vendor Check Register & Purchase Order Listing for  
June 22, 2023 through August 3, 2023 

Item Type: [X] Consent Agenda [ ] Action [ ] Report  [ ] Work Session    [ ]  Other 

Background/Comments: 

The AP Vendor Check Register and Purchase Order totals are as attached. 

Fiscal Impact: 

As indicated. 

Recommendation: 

Approve. 

9



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000431 - 06/22/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed MARCI MUNANUI (MARCI MUNAN - Payee)500.00 3005-262184 73

Printed Locey, Charlene R (000167 - Emp)68.41 3005-262185 01

Printed Loftin, Tammie (000260 - Emp)140.50 3005-262186 01

Printed Strattard, John (001201 - Emp)53.13 3005-262187 01

Printed ALHAMBRA SIERRA SPRINGS (100070/1)458.42 3005-262188 01

Printed PACIFIC STORAGE COMPANY AMERICAN MOBILE SHREDDING (100075/1)63.84 3005-262189 01

Printed BUCKMASTER OFFICE SOLUTIONS (100112/1)40.00 3005-262190 01

Printed BUTTE AUTO PARTS (100115/1)298.93 3005-262191 01

Printed BUTTE COUNTY SHERRIF S OFFICE RECORDS DIVISION (100125/1)195.00 3005-262192 01

Printed CA STATE DEPT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE (100132/1)209.00 3005-262193 01

Printed CANDELARIO ACE HARDWARE (100250/1)146.88 3005-262194 01

Printed CDW GOVERNMENT INC (100151/1)2,252.25 3005-262195 01

Printed CHICO RENT-A-FENCE (100158/1)144.00 3005-262196 01

Printed CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 2 (100749/1)122.39 3005-262197 01

Printed CITY OF BIGGS (100164/1)8,414.98 3005-262198 01

Printed CSU CHICO REGIONAL & CONT ED (100563/1)1,500.00 3005-262199 01

Printed DANIELSEN COMPANY (100182/1)5,573.05 3005-262200 13

Printed FRRPD (100707/1)3,124.80 3005-262201 01

Printed HYLEN DISTRIBUTING (100268/1)184.00 3005-262202 13

Printed ITSAVVY (100273/1)1,872.00 3005-262203 01

Printed J C NELSON SUPPLY CO (100275/1)665.50 3005-262204 01

Printed Jeffs Truck Service And Power Inc, (100850/1)3,330.93 3005-262205 01

Printed LAKEVIEW PETROLEUM CO. (100304/2)480.47 3005-262206 01

Printed Jane Little (100731/1)269.96 3005-262207 01

Printed MJB SALES & SERVICE (100336/1)48.80 3005-262208 01

Printed PG&E (100369/1)2,235.30 3005-262209 01

Printed Piper, Inc. (100843/1)4,303.94 3005-262210 01

Printed PRO PACIFIC FRESH (100376/1)1,032.15 3005-262211 13

Printed RIGHT WAY PEST CONTROL (100393/1)95.00 3005-262212 01

Printed SFS OF SACRAMENTO, INC (100443/2)775.52 3005-262213 01

Printed The Hose Shop (100807/1)125.09 3005-262214 01

Printed Pape' Machinery, Inc. (100836/1)188.02 3005-262215 01

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

10



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000431 - 06/22/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

38,912.26 Totals for Register 000431Number of Items  32

2023 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000431

01-4300 8,916.69 

01-4303 480.47 

01-4700 2,161.56 

01-5200 1,535.60 

01-5502 8,414.98 

01-5503 2,235.30 

01-5606 40.00 

01-5800 5,519.06 

01-5807 404.00 

01-5808 95.00 

01-6400 3,330.93 

01-9110* 33,133.59-

Totals for Fund 01 33,133.59 33,133.59-

13-4300 163.75 

13-4700 5,114.92 

13-9110* 5,278.67-

Totals for Fund 13 5,278.67 5,278.67-

73-9110* 500.00-

73-9150 500.00 

Totals for Fund 73 500.00 500.00-

38,912.26 38,912.26-Totals for Register 000431 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 38,912.26- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

11



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000432 - 06/29/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed Cody Roles (Cody Roles - Payee)150.00 3005-262900 73

Printed Graves, Moneek S (001383 - Emp)103.90 3005-262901 01

Printed AT&T (100086/1)474.48 3005-262902 01

Printed BENCHMARK EDUCATION (100098/1)107.87 3005-262903 01

Printed BI-COUNTY IRRIGATION (100498/1)14.52 3005-262904 01

Printed BUTTE COUNTY SELPA (100124/1)80.00 3005-262905 01

Printed CANDELARIO ACE HARDWARE (100250/1)1,491.42 3005-262906 01

Printed CHRISTENSEN TELECOMMUNICATIONS (100163/1)345.95 3005-262907 01

Printed DANIELSEN COMPANY (100182/1)62.75 3005-262908 13

Printed Electro-Mech Scoreboard Co. (100832/1)647.00 3005-262909 01

Printed FGL ENVIRONMENTAL (100221/1)34.00 3005-262910 01

Printed GOLD COUNTRY BANK CARD SERVICE CENTER (100235/1)1,004.95 3005-262911 01

Printed HYLEN DISTRIBUTING (100268/1)400.00 3005-262912 13

Printed J C NELSON SUPPLY CO (100275/1)454.95 3005-262913 01

Printed JIMMYS CUSTOM TROPHIES (100282/1)108.25 3005-262914 01

Printed LAKEVIEW PETROLEUM CO. (100304/2)2,654.43 3005-262915 01

Printed Lifeguard Store Inc (100311/2)191.41 3005-262916 01

Printed Jane Little (100731/1)281.00 3005-262917 01

Printed MACS MARKET (100318/1)335.66 3005-262918 01

Printed OFFICE DEPOT (100358/1)116.14 3005-262919 01

Printed PRO PACIFIC FRESH (100376/1)209.11 3005-262920 01

Printed Stewart Signs (100808/1)278.57 3005-262921 01

9,546.36 Totals for Register 000432Number of Items  22

2023 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000432

01-4200 107.87 

01-4300 4,493.87 

01-4303 2,654.43 

01-4700 209.11 

01-5200 117.05 

01-5800 876.80 

01-5900 474.48 

01-9110* 8,933.61-

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

12



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000432 - Fund/Obj Expense Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2023 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000432 (continued)

Totals for Fund 01 8,933.61 8,933.61-

13-4700 462.75 

13-9110* 462.75-

Totals for Fund 13 462.75 462.75-

73-5800 150.00 

73-9110* 150.00-

Totals for Fund 73 150.00 150.00-

9,546.36 9,546.36-Totals for Register 000432 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 9,546.36- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

13



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000433 - 07/13/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed MENDOCINO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTR ICT (MENDOCINO U - Payee)461.19 3005-264212 01

Printed Solis, Javier J (001057 - Emp)68.55 3005-264213 01

Printed Graves, Moneek S (001383 - Emp)82.25 3005-264214 01

Printed ACELLUS LEARNING SERVICES (100062/1)15,000.00 3005-264215 01

Printed ALHAMBRA SIERRA SPRINGS (100070/1)240.85 3005-264216 01

Printed ANDES POOL SUPPLY (100077/1)2,346.15 3005-264217 01

Printed CA Department of Tax & Fee Ad (100762/1)183.02 3005-264218 01

Printed CASBO PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (100148/1)1,750.00 3005-264219 01

Printed CENTURYLINK COMMUNICATIONS (100153/1)3.64 3005-264220 01

Printed CITY OF BIGGS (100164/1)8,276.67 3005-264221 01

Printed CONTINENTAL ATHLETICS (100170/1)8,601.22 3005-264222 01

Printed FRONTLINE TECHNOLOGIES GROUP (100231/1)4,002.25 3005-264223 01

Printed OFFICE DEPOT (100358/1)211.83 3005-264224 01

Printed RECOLOGY BUTTE COLUSA (100384/1)1,309.07 3005-264225 01

Printed School Innovations & Achieveme nt (100811/1)4,500.00 3005-264226 01

Printed TPX COMMUNICATIONS (100764/1)472.17 3005-264227 01

Printed U S BANK OFFICE EQUIP FINANCE SERVICES (100458/1)1,429.60 3005-264228 01

Printed VERIZON WIRELESS (100467/1)199.88 3005-264229 01

49,138.34 Totals for Register 000433Number of Items  18

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000433

01-4300 1,971.95 

01-4303 78.96 

01-4400 2,396.66 

01-5300 5,752.25 

01-5502 3,355.40 

01-5504 1,122.06 

01-5606 1,429.60 

01-5800 20,727.04 

01-5900 472.17 

01-8660 104.06 

01-9110* 49,138.34-

01-9510* 11,728.19 

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

14



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000433 - Fund/Obj Expense Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000433 (continued)

49,138.34 49,138.34-Totals for Register 000433 

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000433

01-4300 1,597.97 

01-4400 4,818.42 

01-5502 4,921.27 

01-5504 187.01 

01-5900 203.52 

01-9529* 11,728.19-

Total for Fiscal Year 2023 and Fund 01 11,728.19 11,728.19-

01-4300 1,971.95 

01-4303 78.96 

01-4400 2,396.66 

01-5300 5,752.25 

01-5502 3,355.40 

01-5504 1,122.06 

01-5606 1,429.60 

01-5800 20,727.04 

01-5900 472.17 

01-8660 104.06 

01-9110* 49,138.34-

01-9510* 11,728.19 

Total for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fund 01 49,138.34 49,138.34-

60,866.53 60,866.53-Totals for Register 000433 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 49,138.34- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

15



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000434 - 07/18/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed Clancy Spa & Pool (100852/1)15,489.00 3005-264522 01

Printed Uniq Steel, Inc. (100847/1)47,600.00 3005-264523 01

63,089.00 Totals for Register 000434Number of Items  2

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000434

01-9110* 63,089.00-

01-9510* 63,089.00 

63,089.00 63,089.00-Totals for Register 000434 

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000434

01-4300 15,489.00 

01-6170 47,600.00 

01-9529* 63,089.00-

Total for Fiscal Year 2023 and Fund 01 63,089.00 63,089.00-

01-9110* 63,089.00-

01-9510* 63,089.00 

Total for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fund 01 63,089.00 63,089.00-

126,178.00 126,178.00-Totals for Register 000434 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 63,089.00- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

16



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000434 - Fund/Obj Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000434 (continued)

Page Intentionally Left Blank

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

17



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000435 - 07/18/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed BUTTE AUTO PARTS (100115/1)208.15 3005-264524 01

Printed CA STATE DEPT OF JUSTICE ACCOUNTING OFFICE (100132/1)32.00 3005-264525 01

Printed CANDELARIO ACE HARDWARE (100250/1)138.04 3005-264526 01

Printed CompuGroup Medical, Inc (100796/1)758.10 3005-264527 01

Printed DOCUMENT TRACKING SERVICES (100196/1)1,177.00 3005-264528 01

Printed AERIES Software (100200/2)10,120.00 3005-264529 01

Printed HAYDEN FIRE PROTECTION (100253/1)1,443.47 3005-264530 01

Printed HYLEN DISTRIBUTING (100268/1)250.50 3005-264531 13

Printed MACS MARKET (100318/1)54.43 3005-264532 01

Printed North State Water System (100827/1)210.00 3005-264533 01

Printed ROBERT D SEBRING JR PREMIER GRAD PRODUCTS (100416/1)243.07 3005-264534 01

Printed PRO PACIFIC FRESH (100376/1)272.66 3005-264535 01

Printed STLR dba Ryland (100804/1)262.50 3005-264536 01

Printed STERLING DEARMOND (100741/1)430.52 3005-264537 01

Printed SFS OF SACRAMENTO, INC (100443/2)674.13 3005-264538 01

16,274.57 Totals for Register 000435Number of Items  15

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000435

01-4300 399.24 

01-4700 986.74 

01-5800 11,297.00 

01-9110* 16,117.07-

01-9510* 3,434.09 

Totals for Fund 01 16,117.07 16,117.07-

13-4700 157.50 

13-9110* 157.50-

Totals for Fund 13 157.50 157.50-

16,274.57 16,274.57-Totals for Register 000435 

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000435

01-3701 430.52 

01-4300 297.50 

01-5800 2,674.07 

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

18



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000435 - Fund/Obj Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000435 (continued)

01-5807 32.00 

01-9529* 3,434.09-

Total for Fiscal Year 2023 and Fund 01 3,434.09 3,434.09-

01-4300 399.24 

01-4700 986.74 

01-5800 11,297.00 

01-9110* 16,117.07-

01-9510* 3,434.09 

Totals for Fund 01 16,117.07 16,117.07-

13-4700 157.50 

13-9110* 157.50-

Totals for Fund 13 157.50 157.50-

Total for Fiscal Year 2024 16,274.57 16,274.57-

19,708.66 19,708.66-Totals for Register 000435 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 16,274.57- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

19



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000436 - 07/25/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed PG&E (100369/1)1,836.26 3005-265049 01

Printed Uniq Steel, Inc. (100847/1)49,450.00 3005-265050 01

51,286.26 Totals for Register 000436Number of Items  2

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000436

01-5503 1,836.26 

01-9110* 51,286.26-

01-9510* 49,450.00 

51,286.26 51,286.26-Totals for Register 000436 

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000436

01-6170 49,450.00 

01-9529* 49,450.00-

Total for Fiscal Year 2023 and Fund 01 49,450.00 49,450.00-

01-5503 1,836.26 

01-9110* 51,286.26-

01-9510* 49,450.00 

Total for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fund 01 51,286.26 51,286.26-

100,736.26 100,736.26-Totals for Register 000436 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 51,286.26- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

20



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000436 - Fund/Obj Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000436 (continued)

Page Intentionally Left Blank

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

21



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000437 - 07/27/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed A Z Bus Sales Inc (100057/4)199.20 3005-265468 01

199.20 Totals for Register 000437Number of Items  1

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000437

01-9110* 199.20-

01-9510* 199.20 

199.20 199.20-Totals for Register 000437 

2023 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000437

01-4300 199.20 

01-9529* 199.20-

Total for Fiscal Year 2023 and Fund 01 199.20 199.20-

01-9110* 199.20-

01-9510* 199.20 

Total for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fund 01 199.20 199.20-

398.40 398.40-Totals for Register 000437 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 199.20- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

22



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000437 - Fund/Obj Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Summary / Register 000437 (continued)

Page Intentionally Left Blank

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

23



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000438 - 07/27/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed Biggs High School (Biggs High - Payee)125.00 3005-265469 01

Printed Beverly Landers (100854/1)10,965.01 3005-265470 01

Printed BUTTE COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH DIV OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH (100123/1)1,500.00 3005-265471 13

Printed CANDELARIO ACE HARDWARE (100250/1)388.18 3005-265472 01

Printed Fairbanks Paving Company (100853/1)65,150.00 3005-265473 01

Printed GAYNOR TELESYSTEMS (100233/1)631.86 3005-265474 01

Printed Jane Little (100731/1)148.19 3005-265475 01

Printed Pitney Bowes Inc (100371/2)135.68 3005-265476 01

Printed PRO PACIFIC FRESH (100376/1)218.06 3005-265477 01

Printed RIGHT WAY PEST CONTROL (100393/1)95.00 3005-265478 01

79,356.98 Totals for Register 000438Number of Items  10

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000438

01-4300 1,668.38 

01-4400 125.00 

01-4700 218.06 

01-5600 135.68 

01-5800 10,464.86 

01-5808 95.00 

01-6200 65,150.00 

01-9110* 77,856.98-

Totals for Fund 01 77,856.98 77,856.98-

13-5800 1,500.00 

13-9110* 1,500.00-

Totals for Fund 13 1,500.00 1,500.00-

79,356.98 79,356.98-Totals for Register 000438 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 79,356.98- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

24



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000438 - Fund/Obj Expense Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000438 (continued)

Page Intentionally Left Blank

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

25



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000439 - 08/01/2023 Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

Number Status PayeeAmount Cancel Register IdFund

Printed A Z Bus Sales Inc (100057/4)166.20 3005-265693 01

Printed CatapultK12 (100728/1)4,276.80 3005-265694 01

Printed Demsey, Filliger & Assoc., LLC (100188/1)500.00 3005-265695 01

Printed FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC (100227/1)4,074.79 3005-265696 01

Printed GOLD COUNTRY BANK CARD SERVICE CENTER (100235/1)2,087.30 3005-265697 01

Printed NWEA (100819/1)6,337.50 3005-265698 01

17,442.59 Totals for Register 000439Number of Items  6

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000439

01-4300 1,433.50 

01-5200 820.00 

01-5800 15,189.09 

01-9110* 17,442.59-

17,442.59 17,442.59-Totals for Register 000439 

* denotes System Generated entry

Net Change to Cash 9110 17,442.59- Credit

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 1 of 2

26



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000439 - Fund/Obj Expense Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000439 (continued)

Page Intentionally Left Blank

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM006 - Biggs Unified School District

Page 2 of 2

27



Check RegisterReqPay04a

Register 000439 - Fund/Obj Expense Summary Bank Account COUNTY - US Bank

2024 FUND-OBJ Expense Summary / Register 000439 (continued)

Totals for Org 006 - Biggs Unified School DistrictNumber of Items325,245.56  108

Selection Sorted by Check Number, Include Address:No, Filtered by (Org = 6, Bank Account(s) IN ('COUNTY'), Source = A, Pay To = N, Payment Method = C, 

Starting Check Date = 6/22/2023, Ending Check Date = 8/3/2023, Summary? = Y, Sort/Group 1 = 1, Sort/Group 2 = )

Generated for Moneek Graves (MGRAVES), Aug  4 2023 10:02AM

Page 1 of 1

28



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

I. General

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is between the Tehama County Department 
of Education, serving as the Local Education Agency ("LEA") for the Tehama County 
Department of Education Teacher Induction Program/Career Technical Education (CTE) 
Program ("PROGRAM"), and the county office of education, district, employing agency, 
or independent charter school ("DISTRICT") signing below. Throughout the MOU, new 
teachers are referred to as "Candidates" and veteran teachers are referred to as 
"Mentors." The term of this MOU commences on July 1, 2023, and terminates on June 30, 
2024. 

II. Purpose

The purpose of the MOU is to establish a formal working relationship between the 
DISTRICT, LEA, and the PROGRAM. The PROGRAM will provide and coordinate services 
and support to guide Candidates in meeting California credential requirements through 
the state-accredited Teacher Induction Credential Programs: General Education Clear 
Credential Program, Education Specialist Clear Credential Program, and the Designated 
Subjects Career Technical Education Preliminary and Clear Credential Programs. 

Ill. Eligibility 

Eligible Candidates are those hired within the following credential and program 
categories: 

• Preliminary Credential Program: Designated Subjects (CTE) Candidates who meet
the industry experience and pre-requisite CCTC requirements

• Clear Credential Program: Candidates holding preliminary Multiple Subject, Single
Subject, or Education Specialist Credential, Out of State and Out of Country
trained teachers, and Designated Subjects (CTE) Candidates

IV. LEA and PROGRAM Responsibilities

1. Establish a program model in alignment with California Teacher Induction
Standards to ensure PROGRAM accreditation status through the California
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CCTC) Accreditation System.

2. Submit accreditation reports and fees as required by CCTC.
3. Employ a PROGRAM Administrator whose primary duty is to administer the

PROGRAM and employ Support Staff.

Item 13 A

29



30



31



32



Doug Kaelin

Doug Kaelin

Biggs Unified

07/28/2023 13:48 UTC

33



Option A Option B 
TTIP Pays District Pays 

2023-2024 Fee Schedule Mentor Mentor 
(includes 
$1,700 mentor 
stipend} 

Clear Credential Program 
• Includes enrollment of one Candidate

in one or more of the following
programs: Clear Multiple Subject
Credential, Clear Single
Subject Credential, and Clear
Education Specialist Credential, or

• Includes enrollment of one Candidate in

Enrollment fee 
before 
9-2-23: $4,200

Enrollment fee 
after 
9-3-23: $4,400

Enrollment fee 
before 
9-2-23: $2,500

Enrollment fee 
after 
9-3-23: $2,700the Clear Designated Subjects {CTE)

credential program
Dual Credential Program $4,450 per $2,750 per 

• Includes enrollment of one Candidate in year year 
one or more of the following programs:
Clear Multiple Subject Credential, Clear
Single Subject Credential, or Clear
Education Specialist Credential, and a
concurrent enrollment in a Clear
Designated Subjects (CTE) credential
program

Early Completion Option Program $4,450 per $2,750 per 
• The Candidate must be an experienced and year year 

exceptional teacher, and must meet the
program criteria to gain admission in the
Early Completion Option {ECO) Program

Preliminary Credential Program - $250 one-time fee 
Designated Subjects (CTE) 

• Includes support with the completion
and submission of form 41-4

• Includes appraisal of requirements for the
preliminary and clear credentials

Memorandum of Understanding - Page 6 
34



35



2023-2024 Refund Schedule 
Date PROGRAM receives written 
notice from DISTRICT that a candidate 
and Mentor will not be participating in 
the Program 

April 15 - August 31 

September 1 - September 30 

October 1 - October 31 

November 1 - November 30 

December 1 - June 30 

Policies and Procedures 

• TCDE Record Retention Policy
• Records Request
• Grievance Policy and Form

Amount of Refund 

100% of Program Fee 

50% of Program Fee 

25% of Program Fee 

No refund 

• Complaints Concerning Department Employees
• Uniform Complaint Procedures
• Induction Program Preconditions and Standards
• Preconditions for Designated Subiects
• General Institutional Preconditions

Memorandum of Understanding - Page 8 

75% of Program Fee 

36

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1HlZs278XXDCGM0yIHFughKx21Or0mMAF/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1rJrRGIwJ_gcPLlyEuwRWYVqzv4XYEydv/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19eNi-LgqRESAbHdmUwWQQiPRw2kNKUmA/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1-atOjPb6lZ69iVuMdTCWP6S6dn5ftQPA/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NGsyetXJevoO44bp_cinSEMpgCiBaaXH/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1iY5XBcKo7mTWzXQkbABQQ9UKdA7fEVzD/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1mD3qFy5xc7j9AI6N0IB2jragdXpaO2Lg/view?usp=share_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1i5WynCGsfg57Yb_w2UEgEi8J9MOR-3T9/view?usp=share_link


Document Completion Certificate

Document Reference   : 1f0c200a-6955-43b7-a0be-fc1b1cce8741

Document Title : 2023-24 Biggs Unified School District MOU

Document Region : Northern Virginia

Sender Name : Tehama Teacher Induction

Sender Email : induction@tehamaschools.org

Total Document Pages : 8 

Secondary Security   : Not Required

Participants

Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org)1.

CC

llong@biggs.org1.

Document History

Timestamp Description

07/27/2023 15:38PM PDT Sender downloaded document.

07/27/2023 15:39PM PDT Document sent by Tehama Teacher Induction (induction@tehamaschools.org).

07/27/2023 15:39PM PDT Email sent to Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org).

07/27/2023 15:39PM PDT Email sent to Tehama Teacher Induction (induction@tehamaschools.org).

07/28/2023 06:47AM PDT Document viewed by Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org). 
107.192.119.140 
Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like 
Gecko) Chrome/115.0.0.0 Safari/537.36

07/28/2023 06:47AM PDT Document viewed by Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org). 
107.192.119.140 
Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like 
Gecko) Chrome/115.0.0.0 Safari/537.36

07/28/2023 06:48AM PDT Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org) has agreed to terms of service and to do 
business electronically with Tehama Teacher Induction 
(induction@tehamaschools.org). 
107.192.119.140 
Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like 
Gecko) Chrome/115.0.0.0 Safari/537.36

07/28/2023 06:48AM PDT Signed by Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org). 
107.192.119.140 
Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like 
Gecko) Chrome/115.0.0.0 Safari/537.36

07/28/2023 06:48AM PDT Document copy sent to Doug Kaelin (dkaelin@biggs.org).

37



Item 13 B

38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



Item 13 C

76



77



78



79



80



81



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BUTTE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of: CHANGES TO THE SIGNATORIES 
OF THE SAVINGS AND CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND  
GRANT ACCESS TO BIGGS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY BANK ACCOUNTS 

Resolution # 2023-2024 #01 

WHEREAS, The Biggs Elementary School maintains an Associated Student Body cash bank 
checking and savings accounts at Self-Help Federal Credit Union Bank. 

WHEREAS,  Ms. Beverly Landers was appointed Principal of Biggs Elementary School 
effective July 3, 2023 and Ms. Tracey McPeters was appointed Principal of Richvale Elementary 
School/Special Project effective July 1, 2023. 

WHEREAS, Ms. Laquita Ulrich resigned as Principal of Biggs Elementary School effective 
June 30, 2023. 

WHEREAS, Mr. Douglas Kaelin continues to serve as Superintendent, Ms. Clara Callaway as 
ASB- Bookkeeper, and Ms. Kelly Lewis as Attendance Clerk. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following signatory changes be made to 
the Biggs Elementary Associated Student Body cash bank accounts and to grant access to Biggs 
Elementary School Associated Student Body Savings and Checking Bank Accounts at Self Help 
Federal Union Bank. 

Add: Ms. Beverly Landers and Ms. Tracey McPeters 
Remove: Ms. Laquita Ulrich 
Maintain: Mr. Douglas Kaelin, Ms. Clara Callaway and Ms. Kelly Lewis 

DULY PASSED and ADOPTED this 9th day of August 2023 by the Governing Board of Biggs 
Unified School District by the following roll call: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Signed and Approved by me after this passage. 
______________________________ 
Linda Brown, Governing Board President 

Attest: 
___________________ 
America Navarro, Clerk 

Item 13 D

82



Item 13 E

83



84



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT CHEVROLET MAINT TRUCKTRUC COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 1995 1GBGC34K0SE186667

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FORD MAINT TRUCK  F350 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 2006 1FDSF35PX6EC25306

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT KIA SEDONA  (Van #36)
PRIVATE PASSENGER 
VEHICLE 2009 KNDMB233396318377

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT KIA SEDONA (Van#35)
PRIVATE PASSENGER 
VEHICLE 2009 KNDMB233496318369

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FORD MAINT TRUCK  F250 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 1990 2FTHF25H3LCA43529

BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT FORD MAINT TRUCK  F150 COMMERCIAL VEHICLE 1992 2FTDF15Y0NCA20902

Vehicles that need to be decomissioned and sold or destroyed 

Does Not Run

Item 13 F

85



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
July 19, 2023 

Item Number: 13 H 

Item Title: Amendment of CBO Contract Salaries and Fringe Benefits 

Presenter:  Doug Kaelin  

Attachments:  Proposal   

Item Type:  [ ] Consent Agenda [X] Action [ ] Report [ ] Work Session   [ ] Other

════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background/Comments: 

Chief Business Officer Contract modification beginning August 1, 2023, a 10% increase in 
salaries and a $1,828 increase in health and welfare benefits district contribution for SY 2023/24.  

The certificated and confidential employees included a negotiated 11% on salaries. The Chief 
Business Officer's health and welfare contribution increases to $9,028.   

Fiscal Impact: 

A sum total of $15,460 will be taken from General Fund for SY2023/24. 

Education Impact: 

None 

Recommendation: 

Recommends the Board approve CBO salaries, health, and welfare increases. 

86



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT FOR CHIEF BUSINESS OFFICIAL 

PREAMBLE 

The following is an agreement between the Biggs Unified School District, a public school district of 
the State of California (“District”) and Analyn Dyer, an individual (referred to herein as "Chief 
Business Official/CBO”).  

RECITALS 

1. TERM OF CONTRACT

The terms of this contract shall commence on August 1, 2023, subject to the terms and
conditions hereinafter set forth.  The contract shall be in effect through June 30, 2025 unless
terminated early pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement, or unless extended as provided
herein or as provided by law.

The District shall provide the CBO with at least forty-five (45) days written notice prior to the
expiration of this Agreement of the intention of the District not to renew the agreement.

2. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT

This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws of the State of California, the California
Education Code, the rules and regulations of the California State Board of Education, and the
rules, and the regulations and policies of the Board, all of which are incorporated herein by
reference and made a part of this Agreement.

In accordance with Education Code Section 45100.5, the position of Chief Business Official is
hereby designated as senior management of the classified service and shall be afforded all
the rights, benefits, and burdens of other classified employees, except that the Chief Business
Official shall be exempt from all provisions relating to obtaining permanent status in a senior
management position.  The employment rights are as provided in Education Code sections
45104.5 and 35031.

3. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Chief Business Official shall assist the Superintendent in maintaining the business and
budget functions of the District.  The Chief Business Official supervises all business services
personnel.

The Chief Business Official shall render twelve (12) months of full and regular services to the
Biggs Unified School District during each annual period covered by the agreement, except as
hereinafter provided.

87



The Chief Business Official shall endeavor to maintain and improve her professional 
competence by all available means including subscription to the reading of appropriate 
periodicals, maintenance of membership in appropriate professional organizations, and 
attendance at professional meetings at the local, state and national level, with the 
Superintendent's approval.  The expense of said subscriptions, memberships, and attendance 
is to be at District expense.  The Chief Business Official shall receive permission from the 
Governing Board and Superintendent for her attendance at out-of-state meetings and 
periodically report to the Governing Board her appraisal of the meetings. 

This is an agreement for the performance of professional services as the Chief Business  
Official of the District.  In recognition of the purposes of this Agreement, the CBO shall not be 
assigned to any other position nor have her duties assigned to others without the CBO’s 
consent.  No policy or bylaw of the District shall diminish the CBO’s statutory or contractual 
authority.  All duties assigned to the CBO by the Superintendent shall be appropriate to and 
consistent with the professional role and responsibility of the CBO.   

The CBO shall be entitled to attend all regular, special and (when necessary) closed session 
meetings of the Board, and shall serve as an ex officio member on any and all District 
committees and subcommittees as needed, and shall be entitled to submit recommendations 
on any items of business considered by the Board or any committee or subcommittee of the 
District. 

4. OTHER PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES

With the approval of the Governing Board, the Chief Business Official may undertake
consultative work, speaking engagements, writing, lecturing, or other professional duties and
obligations; said outside professional activities may be performed for consideration provided
they do not interfere with or conflict with the Chief Business Official's performance of her
duties under this agreement.

5. SALARY

The Chief Business Official’s annual salary (effective August 1, 2023) shall be $125,400.
payable in twelve (12) equal monthly payments. (The first year of the contract shall be pro-
rated based on the hire day)

The Governing Board reserves the right to modify the annual salary rate of any or all years of
the Chief Business Official's contract, with the mutual consent of the Chief Business Official.
Such modifications may be retroactive.  However, by so doing, a new contract has not been
entered into, nor the termination date of the existing contract extended.

In an effort to maintain equity with other certificated and administrative personnel, the Chief
Business Official shall receive a total compensation increase (salary and/or district contribution
towards medical, dental and vision) each year of this agreement that is not less than the
percentage increase given to the administrative/management team.

88



6. WORK DAYS

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2025, The Chief Business Official’s work year shall be 12 months, 225
work days.

The Chief Business Official shall accrue sick leave at the rate of twelve (12) days per contract
year.  Such days may be used prior to their accrual, but not to exceed the total accumulated
and which may accrue in that contract year.

7. FRINGE BENEFITS

Health and Welfare - The District shall contribute $9,028.00 towards a medical benefits
package through Butte Schools Self-Funded program.

All statutes applicable to classified sick leave and disability leave shall apply.  Unused sick
leave and disability insurance shall be compensated according to Governing Board policies.

The District shall pay the Chief Business Official’s annual professional dues in CASBO and
any other professional organization that directly contributes to her ability to perform her duties
as the Chief Business Official as determined by the Superintendent.

The District shall reimburse the Chief Business Official for all actual and necessary
expenses incurred by the Chief Business Official within the scope of employment and while
representing the District.  The Chief Business Official shall submit original receipts and/or
billing  slips for all expenses to be paid out of an expense account established by the Board.
Should the District require the Chief Business Official to attend or to participate in a
function requiring that the Chief Business Official be absent from home, the Chief Business
Official may, at her option, be accompanied by her family members.  Any increased travel or
accommodation expenses occasioned by the presence of the family members will be borne
completely by the Chief Business Official.

8. EVALUATION

On or prior to June 30 of each year the Superintendent shall evaluate the performance of the
Chief Business Official according to the position description.  In the event the Superintendent
determines that the performance of the Chief Business Official is satisfactory, the
Superintendent shall so state in writing.

In the event the performance of the Chief Business Official is less than satisfactory, the
Superintendent shall discuss in written detail the unsatisfactory performance including specific
instances where appropriate.  Each area ranked less than satisfactory shall be supplemented
with recommendations for improvement and Superintendent-developed plan for accomplishing
said improvement.

A copy of the written evaluation shall be delivered to the Chief Business Official within ten (10)
days of its completion.  The Chief Business Official shall have the right to make a written
response to the Superintendent respecting the evaluation.  Within thirty (30) days of the

89



delivery of the written evaluation to the Chief Business Official, the Superintendent shall meet 
with the Chief Business Official to discuss the evaluation. 

9. CHANGES IN OR TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, pursuant to Education Code section
35031, the Board may, upon the giving of forty-five (45) days notice, terminate this agreement
effective as of June 30 of any year during the term of this agreement.  In the absence of such
timely notice, this Agreement shall be deemed to be renewed for one additional year on the
same terms, but in no event may this Agreement be extended or renewed beyond June 30,
2025, except by action of the Board in open session at a regular public meeting.

In the event the agreement is terminated for any reason by the Board other than material
breach, the Chief Business Official shall receive no more than one month's salary for each
month remaining on the term of the agreement, but in no event shall this amount exceed
twelve (12) months' payment if the remaining term exceeds twelve (12) months at the time of
termination.

This agreement may be changed or terminated by mutual consent of the parties hereto in the
manner provided for in Education Code, Section 35031, provided, however, that the party
seeking such change or termination shall give not less than sixty (60) days written notice to the
other party.

Additional amendments may be added to the contract by mutual consent of the Chief
Business Official and the Governing Board at any time during the period of this contract,
provided such agreements are reduced to writing and signed by both parties.

This agreement may be terminated by the Governing Board for cause, including but not limited
to material breach of contract or any grounds constituting good cause, including failure by the
Chief Business Official to perform any of the duties and responsibilities as set forth in the
position description of the Chief Business Official, or any other material breach of the
agreement by the Chief Business Official.  Notice of termination for cause shall be given in
writing, and the CBO shall be entitled to appear before the Governing Board to discuss such
causes.  The CBO shall be afforded the right to be represented by counsel at her own
expense, the right to present witnesses and evidence on her behalf and to cross-examine
witnesses presented against her, and the right to a decision based on the matters at the
hearing and stating the ground for any action.  Such meeting shall be conducted in closed
session unless specifically prohibited by state law.  The CBO shall not be entitled to severance
pay in the event of termination for cause.

Reimbursement by CBO to the District:  If this Agreement is terminated, any cash settlement
related to the termination that the CBO may receive from the Governing Board shall be fully
reimbursed to the Governing Board if CBO is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of her
office or position as defined by Government Code Section 53243.4.

Should the Chief Business Official be unable to serve in her position due to physical and/or
mental condition, and upon expiration of the sick leave entitlement as provided by statute and
Governing Board policies, and upon written evaluation by a licensed physician designated by

90



the District indicating the inability of the Chief Business Official to further serve in her position 
of employment, this contract shall be terminated by the Governing Board. 

This agreement shall terminate upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 

• Whenever the CBO and District shall mutually agree to termination in writing

• Upon the death of the CBO

10. INDEMNITY

In accordance with the provisions of Government Code Section 825 and 995, the District shall
defend the Chief Business Official from any and all demands, claims, suits, actions and legal
proceedings brought against the CBO in the CBO’s individual capacity, or official capacity as
an agent and employee of the District, provided that the incident giving rise to any such
demand, claim, suit, action or legal proceeding arose while the Chief Business Official was
acting within the scope of employment.

Upon retirement or separation from the district, the CBO will continue to be indemnified for any
actions taken against her related to her role as the CBO for the district.

11. INCORPORATION OF GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS

In the event this agreement or applicable law is construed or interpreted to provide any paid
leave pending an investigation, criminal legal defense, or cash settlement in the event of
termination, the specific limitations set forth in government code sections 54243, 53243.1,
54242.2, 5324.3 and 5324.4 are fully incorporated into this agreement.

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

In witness herein we affix our signatures to this agreement as the full and complete understanding of 
the relationships between the parties hereto. 

This contract is the full and complete agreement between the parties hereto, and it can be changed 
or modified only by a written agreement, signed by all parties or their successors in interest to this 
agreement. 

References to code sections in this agreement are references to sections in force at the time the 
agreement was signed and to successor sections covering the same statutory issues or to which may 
subsequently amend the section referred to herein. 

91



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed this 9th day of August, 2023. 

BY:______________________________ DATE:  
      Linda Brown , Board President

BY:______________________________ DATE:  
      Doug Kaelin, Superintendent         

BY:______________________________ DATE:  
      Analyn Dyer, CBO 

92



Item 13 I

93



94



95



96



97



2023-2025 Certificated Salary Schedule 

WORK YEAR 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 

A 
HIGH SCHOOL PRINCIPAL & K-8 PRINCIPAL 
215 91,787 94,082 96,434 98,845 101,316 103,849 106,445 109,106 111,834 114,630 115,776 116,934 121,611 122,827 124,056 126,476 127,741 129,018 131,535 

5.00% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 
B 
HIGH SCHOOL VICE PRINCIPAL 
210 87,417 89,602 91,842 94,138 96,492 98,904 101,376 103,911 106,509 109,171 110,263 111,366 113,538 114,674 115,820 118,080 119,261 120,453 122,803 

5.00% 2.5% 
c 

2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 

K-8 SCHOOL PRINCIPAL NIA 917117 Moved to Range A 
215 

D 
ELEMENTARY PRINCIPAL 
205 75,377 77,262 79,193 81,173 83,203 85,283 87,415 89,600 91,840 94,136 95,078 96,028 97,902 98,881 99,869 101,818 102,836 103,864 105,890 

5.00% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 
E 
Daily Rate Based on 195 days per year at 8 hours per day.  There is 2.5% between Steps 
PYSCHOLOGIST 
195 75,859 77,756 79,699 81,692 83,734 85,828 87,973 90,173 92,427 94,738 95,685 96,642 98,527 99,512 100,508 102,468 103,493 104,528 106,567 
Daily Rate 389.02 398.75 408.72 418.93 429.41 440.14 451.15 462.42 473.98 485.83 490.69 495.60 505.27 510.32 515.42 525.48 530.73 536.04 546.50 

5.00% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0% 1.0% 4.0% 
F 
Revised 8/1/23 Based on  184 days per year 8 hours per day. 
LICENSED SPEECH THERAPIST 
184 79,455 81,441 83,478 85,564 87,703 89,896 92,143 94,447 96,808 99,228 100,220 101,222 103,197 104,229 105,271 107,325 108,398 109,483 111,618 
Daily Rate 431.82 442.61 453.68 465.02 476.65 488.57 500.78 513.30 526.13 539.28 544.67 550.12 560.85 566.46 572.13 583.29 589.12 595.02 606.62 

Principal: Masters Required 
Doctorate- $1,800 

Board Approved 
Effective 8/1/23 

98



Item 13 J

99



100



101



102



103



104



Item 13 K

105



Item 13 L

106



107



108



109



Item 13 M

110



111



112



113



gophersport.com  |  800-533-0446  |  @gophersport

Dear Bev, 

On behalf of the Gopher & SPARK teams, thank you for the opportunity to draft this
proposal. On the pages that follow, I hope to convey the messages of who we are, what we do,
and our programmatic approach.

Since 1989, SPARK has been providing a coordinated package of research-based
curriculum, on-site teacher training, content-matched equipment, and extensive follow up
support to teachers representing schools, organizations, and agencies worldwide. Our
research background and these publications prove that SPARK works and can be sustained.
Plus, our years of “real-world” field-testing have taught us how to modify SPARK to meet the
needs of YOUR students and teachers. Don’t just take our world for it; hear testimonials from
SPARK users! SPARK is exclusively available from Gopher.

Hopefully, this proposal begins a process that will lead to our shared goal – healthier, happier
students and staff.

I will follow up with you shortly to see if I captured your goals and objectives in this first draft.
Our entire team is looking forward to exceeding your expectations.

Sincerely,

Brian Hull
SPARK Territory Sales Manager
Phone: 507.446.2219
Email: brianhull@sparkpe.org

Item 13 N

114

https://www.gophersport.com/
https://sparkpe.org/publications/outcomes
https://sparkpe.org/testimonials
https://sparkpe.org/testimonials
mailto:brianhull@sparkpe.org


For over 75 years, Gopher has been committed to serving physical education, athletics, 
and fitness professionals. We are here to help you achieve your program goals and are 
proud to dedicate our efforts toward increasing physical activity. We look forward to 

serving you now and in the future.

The promise to you!

When you choose Gopher, you will always receive:

Unconditional 100% 
Satisfaction Guarantee

If you are not satisfied with a product for any reason 
at any time, we’ll replace it or refund your money.  

No hassles. No exclusions. No kidding!

Gopher equipment will last but this funding 
won’t. Choose the best equipment backed by 

the best guarantee!

Experience with Large Projects
Gopher has been working hand-in-hand with 
districts and schools to enhance their programs, 
as well as ensure a smooth order and delivery 

experience, for 75 years.

Recently, Gopher has been helping districts with 
federal relief funding (ESSER).

Superior Customer Care
When you contact Gopher, you will receive 
a prompt response from a friendly and 
knowledgeable representative trained to meet 

your every need!

Exclusive Products
Inventing products that solve problems and 
finding new ways to promote physical activity 
is our passion. Our selection features high-
quality items designed to enhance or expand 
your program that you can’t find anywhere else!

GopherSport.com

Exclusive Home of SPARK
Gopher is proud to be the exclusive partner of SPARK, the world’s most researched physical 
education and physical activity program. Featuring comprehensive curriculum sets for K-2, 3-6, 
Middle School, and High School physical education, SPARK provides everything you need to 

improve physical activity and overall engagement in PE.

115

https://www.gophersport.com/


gophersport.com  |  800-533-0446  |  @gophersport

For over 30 years, SPARK has been dedicated to creating, implementing, and evaluating
research-based programs that promote lifelong wellness. To ensure a successful
implementation of your program, you will want to learn more about the four essential
components of SPARK.

The 4 Essential Components of SPARK

116

https://www.gophersport.com/
https://sparkpe.org/curriculum
https://sparkpe.org/professional-development
https://sparkpe.org/equipment


gophersport.com  |  800-533-0446  |  @gophersport

Teacher Resources Overview

Manual

• Instructional units written in scope and
sequence

• All lessons include learning targets and
objectives

• Social and emotional learning
• Aligned to State and National

Standards

SPARKfolio

• Holds and organizes teaching materials
• Skill & station cards
• Highlight referenced materials are

laminated
• Durable box makes it easy to transport/share

Music CD

• Contains the music you need on one CD
• Warm-up and cool-down music
• Interval and circuit music

SPARKfamily.org Subscription

• Digital access to your SPARK program materials
• Interactive alignment and assessment tools
• Activity preview videos for K-2, 3-6, and Middle School
• Exclusive web-only units

117

https://www.gophersport.com/


Quote 
Quote #: QT131369 
Quote Date: 07/21/2023
Expire Date: 08/20/2023

QT131369

1 of 2

Ship To:

Biggs Elementary School
300 B Street
Biggs CA 95917
United States

Shipping Contact: 

Contact Name: Beverly Landers

Sales Manager: Brian Hull
brianhull@sparkpe.org
Tel: 855-500-3623
Fax: 507-446-2219

Bill To: Quote Total:
Biggs Elementary School
300 B Street
Biggs CA 95917
United States

Billing Contact:

$19,588.79

Item availability may change hourly based on incoming orders. Please place your order quickly to ensure fast 
shipment of your product(s).

Item Qty
Requested

Qty
Available

Est Ship
Date Unit Price

Extended
Price

21-835 SPARK - K-2, 3-year digital subscription 5 07/21/20
23

$249.00 $1,245.00

21-841 SPARK - 3-6, 3-year digital subscription 3 07/21/20
23

$249.00 $747.00

21-847 SPARK - Middle School, 3-year digital 
subscription

2 07/21/20
23

$249.00 $498.00

21-681 Spark Grades K-2 Premium Equipment Pack 
Customer Hand Unload

1 1 07/21/20
23

$8,199.00 $8,199.00

21-682 Spark Grades 3-6 Standard Equipment Pack 1 0 08/18/20
23

$6,299.00 $6,299.00

118



Quote 
Quote #: QT131369 
Quote Date: 07/21/2023
Expire Date: 08/20/2023

QT131369

2 of 2

Subtotal: $16,988.00

Shipping, Handling & Processing: $1,393.83

Estimated Sales Tax : $1,206.96

Quote Total: $19,588.79

Order prepayment may be required. We offer 30-day terms on approved credit. Full payment terms and wire transfer 
information are available by request.

119



Quote 
Quote #: QT131370 
Quote Date: 07/21/2023
Expire Date: 08/20/2023

QT131370

1 of 2

Ship To:

Biggs Elementary School
300 B Street
Biggs CA 95917
United States

Shipping Contact: 

Contact Name: Beverly Landers

Sales Manager: Brian Hull
brianhull@sparkpe.org
Tel: 855-500-3623
Fax: 507-446-2219

Bill To: Quote Total:
Biggs Elementary School
300 B Street
Biggs CA 95917
United States

Billing Contact:

$18,588.79

Item availability may change hourly based on incoming orders. Please place your order quickly to ensure fast 
shipment of your product(s).

Item Qty
Requested

Qty
Available

Est Ship
Date Unit Price

Extended
Price

21-697 SPARK - 1-year digital subscription, K-2 5 07/21/20
23

$149.00 $745.00

21-698 SPARK - 1-year digital subscription, 3-6 3 07/21/20
23

$149.00 $447.00

21-699 SPARK - 1-year digital subscription, Middle 
School

2 07/21/20
23

$149.00 $298.00

21-681 Spark Grades K-2 Premium Equipment Pack 
$90 Liftgate Charge

1 1 07/21/20
23

$8,199.00 $8,199.00

21-682 Spark Grades 3-6 Standard Equipment Pack 1 0 08/18/20
23

$6,299.00 $6,299.00

120



Quote 
Quote #: QT131370 
Quote Date: 07/21/2023
Expire Date: 08/20/2023

QT131370

2 of 2

Subtotal: $15,988.00

Shipping, Handling & Processing: $1,393.83

Estimated Sales Tax : $1,206.96

Quote Total: $18,588.79

Order prepayment may be required. We offer 30-day terms on approved credit. Full payment terms and wire transfer 
information are available by request.

121



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
August 9, 2023 

Item Number: 13 O 

Item Title: Art/Music & Instructional Materials Block Grant- Amended Plan 

Presenter:  Analyn Dyer  

Attachments:  Amended Plan  

Item Type:  [ ] Consent Agenda [X] Action [ ] Report [ ] Work Session   [ ] Other

════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background/Comments: 

The Governor’s May Revision stated a $1.2 Billion reduction in Arts/ Music Instructional 
Materials Block Grants. Enacted Budget stated a $200 million reduction. This equates to a 5.6% 
reduction from the original allocation.  

The district's new Grants allocation will be $ 310,874.00 

Fiscal Impact: 

Additions of $ 146,216 to the previous plan. 
Refer attachments. 

Education Impact: 

This plan provides a comprehensive approach to enhancing the arts and music throughout the 
district. 

Recommendation: 

The Administration recommends the Board approve the amended plan for the Arts, Music, and 
Instructional Materials Block Grant as presented. 

122



Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 1 of 3 7/27/23 

Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 2022 
Expenditure Plan 

LEA Name: Biggs Unified School District 

Contact Name: Doug Kaelin 

Email Address: dkaelin@biggs.org 

Phone Number: 530-868-1281 

Total Amount of funds received by the LEA: 164,658.00 

Date of adoption at a public meeting: 08/09/2023 

AB 181 Sec. 134 AB 185 Sec. 56 

(a) For the 2022–23 fiscal year, the sum of three billion five hundred sixty million eight hundred eighty-five thousand dollars 
($3,560,885,000) is hereby appropriated from the General Fund to the State Department of Education to establish the Arts, Music, 
and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant, for allocation to county offices of education, school districts, charter schools, 
and the state special schools to: 

(1) Obtain standards-aligned professional development and acquire instructional materials, in the following subject areas: 
(A) Visual and performing arts. 
(B) World languages. 
(C) Mathematics. 
(D) Science, including environmental literacy. 
(E) English language arts, including early literacy. 
(F) Ethnic studies. 
(G) Financial literacy, including the content specified in Section 51284.5 of the Education Code. 
(H) Media literacy. 
(I) Computer science. 
(J) History-social science. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
To recruit and hire one (1) FTE Art, 
Music teacher to serve students for all 
three school sites. Including 
professional development in 
implementation. 

0 60,000.00 65,000.00 70,000.00 195,000.00 

Subtotal 60,000.00 65,000.00 70,000.00 195,000.00 

123



Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 2 of 3 7/27/23 

(2) Obtain instructional materials and professional development aligned to best practices for improving school climate, including 
training on deescalation and restorative justice strategies, asset-based pedagogies, antibias, transformative social-emotional 
learning, media literacy, digital literacy, physical education, and learning through play. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
To implement new lessons and to add 
Media Art course  materials and 
equipment. 

0 8,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 26,000.00 

Subtotal 8,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 26,000.00 

(3) Develop diverse book collections and obtain culturally relevant texts, including leveled texts, in both English and pupils’ home 
languages, to support pupils’ independent reading. It is the intent of the Legislature that these book collections and culturally 
relevant texts be used to provide support for pupils through the establishment of site-based school and classroom libraries that 
are culturally relevant to pupils’ home and community experiences and be available in English, pupils’ home language, or a 
combination of more than one language. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
Subtotal 

(4) Operational costs, including but not limited, to retirement and health care cost increases. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
Other Operational Costs 0 20,500.00 22,500.00 22,374.00 65,374.00 

Subtotal 20,500.00 22,500.00 22,374.00 65,374.00 

(5) As related to the COVID-19 pandemic, acquire personal protective equipment, masks, cleaning supplies, COVID-19 tests, 
ventilation upgrades, and other similar expenditures, if they are necessary to keep pupils and staff safe from COVID-19 and 
schools open for in-person instruction. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
Health and Safety, facilities upgrade. 7,000.00 8,000.00 9,500.00 24,500.00 

Subtotal 7,000.00 8,000.00 9,500.00 24,500.00 

124



Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant 3 of 3 7/27/23 

(6) 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
Subtotal 

Summary of Expenditures 

Total Planned Expenditures by the LEA: 310,874.00 

(b) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall apportion funds proportionally  to county offices of education, school districts, 
charter schools, and the state special schools on the basis of an equal amount per unit of average daily attendance for kindergarten 
and grades 1 to 12, inclusive,  as those numbers were reported as of  the second principal apportionment for the 2021–22 fiscal 
year. The average daily attendance for each state special school shall be deemed to be 97 percent of the enrollment as reported in 
the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System as of the 2021–22 Fall 1 Submission.  

(c) Funding appropriated pursuant to this section shall be available for encumbrance through the 2025–26 fiscal year. Local 
educational agencies are encouraged, but not required, to proportionally use resources received pursuant to this section for the 
purposes noted in paragraphs (1) to (5), inclusive, of subdivision (a) and to support arts and music education programs. 

(d) For purposes of this section, standards-aligned instructional materials includes, but is not limited to, books for school and 
classroom libraries. 

(e) The governing board or body of each school district, county office of education, or charter school receiving funds pursuant to this 
section shall discuss and approve a plan for the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this section at a regularly scheduled public 
meeting. It is the intent of the Legislature that each school district, county office of education, or charter school expend any 
resources received pursuant to this section consistent with their governing board or body approved plan. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Total 
Budgeted per 

Activity 
Subtotal Section (1)     60,000.00 65,000.00 70,000.00 195,000.00 

Subtotal Section (2)     8,000.00 9,000.00 9,000.00 26,000.00 

Subtotal Section (4)     20,500.00 22,500.00 22,374.00 65,374.00 

Subtotal Section (5)     7,000.00 8,000.00 9,500.00 24,500.00 

Totals by year 0.00 95,500.00 104,500.00 110,874.00 310,874.00 

Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 

310,874.00 

General Instructions 
This example template is provided as a resource as one way to develop an expenditure plan for the Arts, Music, and Instructional 
Materials Discretionary Block Grant of 2022.  LEAs are cautioned to refer to AB 181, Sec. 134, (amended by AB 185, Sec. 56) for all 
program requirements.  Please verify all calculations/formulas before finalizing the plan. 

125



BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
August 9, 2023 

Item Number: 13 P 

Item Title: Learning Recovery Emergency Block Grant- Amended Plan 

Presenter:  Analyn Dyer  

Attachments:  Amended Plan  

Item Type:  [ ] Consent Agenda [X] Action [ ] Report [ ] Work Session   [ ] Other

════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════════ 

Background/Comments: 

The Governor’s May Revision stated a $2.5 Billion reduction in Learning Recovery Block Grant. 
Enacted Budget stated a $494.5 million reduction. This equates to a 14.4% reduction from the 
original allocation.  

The district's new Grants allocation will be $ 624,461.00 

Fiscal Impact: 

The district received a sum total of $729,511. 
$105,050 will be deducted from our future apportionments. 
Refer attached amended plan  

Education Impact: 

The funds could be used for intensive tutoring, additional learning time, accelerated learning 
strategies, early intervention, mental health, counseling services, and other learning supports.  

Recommendation: 

The Administration recommends the Board approve the amended plan for the Learning Recovery 
Block Grant as presented. 

126



Learning Recovery Block Grant 2022 
Expenditure Plan Template 

LEA Name: Biggs Unified School District 

Contact Name: Doug Kaelin 

Email Address: dkaelin@biggs.org 

Phone Number: 530-868-1281 

Total Amount of funds received by the LEA: 729,511.00 

Date of adoption at a public meeting: 08/09/2023 

EC 42356 
(c) (1) The governing board or body of a local educational agency may expend the one-time funds to establish learning recovery 
initiatives through the 2027–28 school year that, at a minimum, support academic learning recovery and staff and pupil social and 
emotional well-being. 

(2) Specifically, funds received shall only be expended for any of the following purposes: 
(A)  Instructional learning time for the 2022–23 through 2027–28 school years by increasing the number of instructional days 

or minutes provided during the school year, providing summer school or intersessional instructional programs, or taking 
any other action that increases or stabilizes the amount of instructional time or services provided to pupils, or decreases or 
stabilizes staff-to-pupil ratios, based on pupil learning needs. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

The Learning Recovery Plan is Biggs 
Unified School District's response to 
address unfinished learning that 
may have been caused by the 
Covid-19 pandemic or being in 
distance learning. 

0 50,000.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,616 624,461.00 

Subtotal 0.00 50,000.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,616.00 624,461.00 

(B) Accelerating progress to close learning gaps through the implementation, expansion, or enhancement of learning supports, such 
as: 

(i)  Tutoring or other one-on-one or small group learning supports provided by certificated or classified staff. 
(ii)  Learning recovery programs and materials designed to accelerate pupil academic proficiency or English language 

proficiency, or both. 
(iii)  Providing early intervention and literacy programs for pupils in preschool to grade 3, inclusive, including, but not limited to, 

school library access. 
(iv)  Supporting expanded learning opportunity program services pursuant to Section 46120. 
(v)  Providing instruction and services consistent with the California Community Schools Partnership Act (Chapter 6 

(commencing with Section 8900) of Part 6) regardless of grantee status. 

127



Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(C) Integrating pupil supports to address other barriers to learning, and staff supports and training, such as the provision of health, 
counseling, or mental health services, access to school meal programs, before and after school programs, or programs to address 
pupil trauma and social-emotional learning, or referrals for support for family or pupil needs. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(D) Access to instruction for credit-deficient pupils to complete graduation or grade promotion requirements and to increase or 
improve pupils’ college eligibility. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(E) Additional academic services for pupils, such as diagnostic, progress monitoring, and benchmark assessments of pupil learning. 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(d) (1) Local educational agencies receiving apportionments shall report to the department, using the template developed by the 
department, and make publicly available on their internet websites, interim expenditures of those apportioned funds to the 
department by December 1, 2024, and December 1, 2027, and a final report on expenditures no later than December 1, 2029. Local 
educational agencies that do not submit the final expenditure report shall forfeit all funds apportioned pursuant to this section. 

Summary of Expenditures 

Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal Section (1)    0.00 50,000.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,616.00 624,461.00 

Subtotal Section (2)    0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (3)    0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Subtotal Section (4)    0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

128



Planned Activity Budgeted 
2022-23 

Budgeted 
2023-24 

Budgeted 
2024-25 

Budgeted 
2025-26 

Budgeted 
2026-27 

Budgeted 
2027-28 

Total 
Budgeted 

per 
Activity 

Subtotal Section (5)    0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Totals by year 0.00 50,000.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,615.00 143,616.00 624,461.00 

Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 

624,461.00 

129



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
BIGGS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BUTTE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of: CHANGES TO THE SIGNATORIES 
OF THE SAVINGS AND CHECKING ACCOUNTS AND  
GRANT ACCESS TO BIGGS HIGH SCHOOL 
ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY BANK ACCOUNTS 

Resolution # 2023/2024 #02 

WHEREAS, The Biggs High School maintains an Associated Student Body cash bank checking 
and savings accounts at Self-Help Federal Credit Union Bank. 

WHEREAS, Rochelle Jones was appointed ASB Bookkeeper of Biggs High School and Casey 
Morch was appointed ASB Advisor/Teacher. 

WHEREAS, Mr. Tyler Rutledge resigned as Principal of Biggs High School effective June 30, 
2022, Ms. Lorelle Mudd resigned as Chief Business Officer effective November 30, 2022, and 
Ms. Loretta Long, Admin/Human Resources Director is in a different position in the District. 

WHEREAS, Mr. Douglas Kaelin continues to serve as Superintendent. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the following signatory changes be made to 
the Biggs High School Associated Student cash bank account and to grant access to Biggs High 
School Associated Student Body Savings and Checking Bank Accounts at Self Help Federal 
Union Bank. 

Add: Ms. Rochelle Jones and Ms.Casey Morch 
Remove: Mr. Tyler Rutledge, Ms. Lorelle Mudd and Ms. Loretta Long 
Maintain: Mr. Douglas Kaelin 

DULY PASSED and ADOPTED this 9th day of August 2023 by the Governing Board of Biggs 
Unified School District by the following roll call: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

Signed and Approved by me after this passage. 
______________________________ 
Linda Brown, Governing Board President 

Attest: 
___________________ 
America Navarro, Clerk 

Item 13 Q

130



Item 13 R

131



132



133



134



135



136



Item 14 C

137



138



Item 14 D

139



140



15 A

141



GASB Statement No. 75

Supplemental Schedules
for Biggs Unified School District

Reporting Period:  July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 
Valuation Date:  July 1, 2021 

July 18, 2023

142



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

1 7/18/2023

Note to Auditors
DFA, LLC (DFA) has prepared the following supplemental schedules to accompany the District’s actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2021 to (1) facilitate preparation of GASB 75 reporting and (2) to provide
information that (if applicable) was not determinable as of the valuation date. We have prepared this
supplement based on the results of our actuarial valuation and (if applicable) subsequent projections. We
are available to discuss and reconcile any differences between your records and our calculations.

Our actuarial valuation report is intended to comply with GASB 75’s valuation requirements (at least one 
every two years); the following schedules are intended to provide the reporting information specific to the
applicable reporting period (July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023), with updates to the measurement date (June
30, 2023).

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2023
Plan Description
Plan administration. The District’s defined benefit plan, Biggs Unified School District’s Other Post
Employment Benefits Plan (Plan), is a single employer defined benefit health care plan administered by
the District. Plan benefits and contribution requirements for both the employee and District are
established by labor agreements. All contracts with District employees may be renegotiated at various
times in the future, and thus, benefits and costs are subject to change.

Benefits provided. Classified, Confidential, and Classified Management employees may retire with
District-paid medical benefits after the later of age 50 and 10 years of continuous service (55 and 15 for
Classified employees hired on or after January 1, 2014).  Benefits are paid for the lesser of five years or
Medicare eligibility age (currently age 65).  If the retiree dies before the end of the prescribed benefit
period, the surviving spouse will be entitled to any unused benefits.  District contributions are capped at
$15,000 per year for employees who retire on or before June 30, 2015, and $12,000 per year for
employees who retire after June 30, 2015.  Classified employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 and
Confidential employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 are subject to a cap of $8,400 regardless of
date of retirement.

Certificated employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 may retire with District-paid medical, dental, and
vision benefits after the later of age 55 and 15 years of District service credit.  Benefits are paid for seven
years plus one additional year for each five years of service credit in excess of 15, to a maximum of 10
years of District-paid benefits. The cap is 110% of the maximum District contribution for actives in the
year of retirement.  For retirements between 2007 and 2017 inclusive, an annual District cap of $12,243
applies.

Certificated employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 become eligible for retiree health benefits after
the later of age 55 and 20 years of District service, and benefits are paid for the lesser of seven years or
until Medicare eligibility age (currently age 65). The cap is 100% of the maximum District contribution for
active employees in the year of retirement ($11,130 in 2021).

As of the valuation date there are two Certificated retirees earning benefits for their lifetime under a
former plan of the District.

Certificated Management employees negotiate their own retiree health packages.  Contracts currently in
effect guarantee benefits at least as valuable as those provided to Certificated unit members.

143



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

2 7/18/2023

Plan membership. On July 1, 2021, the most recent valuation date, membership consisted of the
following:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 7
Active plan members 73

Contributions. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in Paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75.

144



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

3 7/18/2023

Total OPEB Liability
The District’s Total OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021. Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount
from valuation to measurement dates.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:  

Actuarial cost method Entry Age, Level Percent of Pay
Valuation of fiduciary net position No assets held in an irrevocable trust as of the measurement date.
Recognition of deferred inflows
and outflows of resources

Closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service
lives of all employees provided with OPEB

Salary increases 3.00 percent
Inflation rate 2.75 percent
Healthcare cost trend rate 5.00 percent for 2023, 5.20 percent for 2024-2069, and 4.00 percent for 2070

and later years; Medicare ages: 4.00 percent for all years.
Preretirement Mortality

Certificated Mortality Rates for active employees from CalSTRS Experience Analysis
(2015-2018).

Classified Preretirement Mortality Rates from CalPERS Experience Study (2000-
2019).

Postretirement Mortality
Certificated Mortality Rates for retired members and beneficiaries from CalSTRS

Experience Analysis (2015-2018).
Classified Post-retirement Mortality Rates for Healthy Recipients from CalPERS

Experience Study (2000-2019).

Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on a review of plan experience
during the period July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2021.

Discount rate. For OPEB Plans That Are Not Administered through Trusts That Meet the Criteria in
Paragraph 4, GASB 75 requires a discount rate that is a yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt
general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The discount rate used to
measure the District’s Total OPEB liability is based on the following information:

Reporting Date Measurement Date

Fidelity GO AA
20 Years

Municipal Index Discount Rate
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2022 3.69% 3.69%
June 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 3.86% 3.86%

145



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

4 7/18/2023

The Total OPEB liability was as follows:

Total OPEB liability $2,101,176

Measurement date June 30, 2023
Reporting date June 30, 2023

Covered employee payroll $4,698,923
Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 44.72%

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability (June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023) 

Total OPEB Liability
Service Cost 133,122
Interest 77,256
Changes of benefit terms 0
Difference between expected and actual experience 0
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (27,881)
Benefit payments1 (82,951)
Net change in total OPEB liability 99,546
Total OPEB liability – June 30, 2022 (a) $2,001,630
Total OPEB liability – June 30, 2023 (b) $2,101,176

1 Includes $67,654 of pay-as-you-go contributions made from sources outside of trust, plus an implicit subsidy
amount of $15,297.

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the Total
OPEB liability, as well as what the Total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate: 

1% Decrease
(2.86%) 

Discount Rate
(3.86%)

1% Increase
(4.86%) 

Total OPEB liability 2,271,517 2,101,176 1,945,857

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents
the Total OPEB liability, as well as what the Total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:

1% Decrease2 Trend Rate 1% Increase3 
Total OPEB liability 1,886,317 2,101,176 2,351,754

2 Trend rate for each future year reduced by 1.00%.
3 Trend rate for each future year increased by 1.00%.

146



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

5 7/18/2023

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

On June 30, 2023, the District’s deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources to OPEB
from the following sources are:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Difference between expected and actual experience4,5 0 (749,608)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs4,5 205,611 (272,204)
Total $205,611 $(1,021,812)

4 Measured on June 30, 2023.
5 See Schedule of Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources for additional information.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB
expense as follows:

Fiscal Year
ending June 30: Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

2024 $44,602 $(153,948)
2025 44,602 (145,375)
2026 36,534 (145,375)
2027 33,073 (145,375)
2028 33,073 (145,375)

Thereafter+ 13,727 (286,364)

147



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

6 7/18/2023

Schedule of Deferred Outflows of Resources

Year Type Category Initial Base
Amortization

Period
Current

Recognition
Current
Balance

2017 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2018 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2019 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2020 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2021 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2022 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2023 Deferred Outflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 9.4 0 0

Difference between expected and actual experience Total $0 $0

Year Type Category Initial Base
Amortization

Period
Current

Recognition
Current
Balance

2017 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2018 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2019 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 84,164 7.3 11,529 26,519
2020 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 195,310 9.2 21,229 110,394
2021 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 104,230 8.8 11,844 68,698
2022 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2023 Deferred Outflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 9.4 0 0

Changes in assumptions or other inputs Total $44,602 $205,611

Deferred Outflow Total $44,602 $205,611

148



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

7 7/18/2023

Schedule of Deferred Inflows of Resources

Year Type Category Initial Base
Amortization

Period
Current

Recognition
Current
Balance

2017 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2018 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2019 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2020 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience (318,986) 9.2 (34,672) (180,298)
2021 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 0.0 0 0
2022 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience (721,126) 9.5 (75,908) (569,310)
2023 Deferred Inflow Difference between expected and actual experience 0 9.4 0 0

Difference between expected and actual experience Total $(110,580) $(749,608)

Year Type Category Initial Base
Amortization

Period
Current

Recognition
Current
Balance

2017 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2018 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs (82,061) 6.7 (12,248) (8,573)
2019 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2020 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2021 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs 0 0.0 0 0
2022 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs (302,374) 9.5 (31,829) (238,716)
2023 Deferred Inflow Changes in assumptions or other inputs (27,881) 9.4 (2,966) (24,915)

Changes in assumptions or other inputs Total $(47,043) $(272,204)

Deferred Inflow Total $(157,623) $(1,021,812)

149



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

8 7/18/2023

OPEB Expense

The District’s OPEB expense (credit) was $97,357.

Total OPEB Liability – beginning (a) $2,001,630
Total OPEB Liability – ending (b) $2,101,176
Change in Total OPEB Liability [(b)-(a)] 99,546
Change in Deferred Outflows 44,602
Change in Deferred Inflows (129,742)
Employer Contributions 82,951
Adjustment 0
OPEB Expense (Credit) – June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 $97,357

Service Cost 133,122
Interest Cost 77,256
Changes of benefit terms 0
Recognition of Deferred Outflows and Inflows

Differences between expected and actual experience (110,580)
Changes of assumptions (2,441)
Differences between projected and actual investments 0
Total (113,021)

Adjustment 0
OPEB Expense (Credit) – June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023 $97,357

150



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

9 7/18/2023

Journal Entries6

OPEB Expense Journal Entries - June 30, 2023 Reporting Date

Debit Credit
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience Deferred Outflows $0 $0

Deferred Inflows 110,580 0
Change in Assumptions and Other Inputs Deferred Outflows 0 (44,602)

Deferred Inflows 19,162 0
OPEB Liability 0 (182,497)
OPEB Expense/Credit 97,357 0
Total $227,099 $(227,099) 

Employer Contribution Journal Entries - June 30, 2023 Reporting Date

Debit Credit
Contributions paid July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 Total OPEB Liability/(Asset) $82,951 $0

Other Healthcare (Implicit Subsidy) 0 (15,297)
Contributions Expense 0 (67,654)

Total $82,951 $(82,951) 

6 Provided for illustrative purposes. Actual entries may differ. DFA is available to discuss any differences.

151



Biggs Unified School District
Post-Employment Medical Benefits Plan

GASB 75 Disclosure Information

10 7/18/2023

Actuarial Certification
The results set forth in this supplement are based on our actuarial valuation of the health and welfare
benefit plans of the Biggs Unified School District as of July 1, 2021.

The valuation was performed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices.
We relied on census data for active employees and retirees provided to us by the District.  We also made
use of claims, premium, expense, and enrollment data, and copies of relevant sections of healthcare
documents provided to us by the District, and (when applicable) trust statements prepared by the trustee
and provided to us by the District.

The assumptions used in performing the valuation, as summarized in this report, and the results based
thereupon, represent our best estimate of the actuarial costs of the program under GASB 74 and GASB
75, and the existing and proposed Actuarial Standards of Practice for measuring post-retirement
healthcare benefits.

Each undersigned actuary meets the Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries to
render the actuarial opinion contained in this report.

Certified by:

Carlos Diaz, ASA, EA, MAAA
Actuary

152



Analyn Dyer
Chief Business Officer
Biggs Unified School District
300 B Street
Biggs, CA  95917

153



Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6er 7 8 9
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16er 17 18 19 10 11 12 13er 14 15 16
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 22 23er 24 25 26 17 18 19 20er 21 22 23
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30er 31 24 25 26 27er 28 29 30
30 31

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1er 2 3 4 1 2
1 2 3* 4* 5* 6* 7 5 6 7 8er 9 10 11 3 4 5 6er 7 8 9
8 9 10 11er 12 13 14 12 13 14 15er 16 17 18 10 11 12 13er 14 15 16
15 16 17 18er 19 20 21 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20*** 21 22 23

22 23 24 25er 26 27 28 26 27 28 29er 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
29 30 31 31

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7er 8 9 10 3 4 5 6er 7 8 9
14 15 16 17er 18 19 20 11 12 13 14er 15 16 17 10 11 12 13er 14 15 16

21 22 23 24er 25 26 27 18 19 20 21er 22 23 24 17 18 19 20er 21 22 23
28 29 30 31er 25 26 27 28er 29 24/31 25 26 27er 28 29 30

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 1er 2 3 4 1
7 8 9 10er 11 12 13 5 6 7 8er 9 10 11 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
14 15 16 17er 18 19 20 12 13 14 15er 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
21 22 23 24er 25 26 27 19 20 21 22er 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22

28 29 30 26 27 28 29er 30*** 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30

* Minumum Days (grades K-8)
**  Minimum Days (Grades 9-12)

Jul 4 Independence Day observed *** Minimum Day ALL Grades

Jul 5 Local Holiday
Sept 4 Labor Day

Nov 10 Veterans Day observed

Nov 23 Thansgiving Day

Nov. 24 Local Holiday 8/07 - Teachers Return
Dec. 22 Local Holiday 8/08 - 10 mo. Classified Return
Dec 25 Christmas Day ELEMENTARY GRADING PERIODS
Jan 1 New Year's Day First Trimester Nov.3rd 60 days
Jan 15 Martin Luther King Day Second Trimester March 1st 62 days
Feb 19 Presidents' Day Third Trimester May 31st 58 days
Apr 1 Local Holiday SECONDARY GRADING PERIODS
May 27 Memorial Day First Semester Dec. 20th 87 days
June 19 Juneteenth Second Semester May 31st 93 days Board approved:  03/03/2021

Oct 2 11 Mo. Classified Alternate
July 3 12 Mo. Classified Alternate

er   Early Release Days

 Non-School Days - Staff Days

District designated holidays per Ed Code 37220 & 45205

Staff Return Dates

Break: 02/16/24 - 02/19/24           
Spring Recess: 03/29/24 - 04/05/24 
(Easter March 31st)

05/31/24 - H.S. Graduation

May 22 June

2023
July August           16

January              15 February           19

September            20

October              21 December            14November             16

March  20
2024

Winter Recess:  12/21/23 - 01/09/24

Biggs Unified School District 2023/2024 Calendar        
Doug Kaelin, Superintendent

8/10/2023 - First Day of School
05/30/2024 - Last Day of School

All Schools

April 15

05/30/24 - BES Graduation

Item 15 B

154

http://www.calendarpedia.com/#

	August 9 2023 Agenda Pages
	June 28 2023 Special Meeting Minutes
	Aug 2023 -CBO Report
	Interdistrict Consent BOARD ONLY
	PO Vendor Report Attachment
	PO VENDOR REPORT Agenda Cover Page
	PO Vendor Report
	Check Register
	6
	COUNTY
	000431
	2
	
	3005-262184
	

	3005-262185
	

	3005-262186
	

	3005-262187
	

	3005-262188
	

	3005-262189
	

	3005-262190
	

	3005-262191
	

	3005-262192
	

	3005-262193
	

	3005-262194
	

	3005-262195
	

	3005-262196
	

	3005-262197
	

	3005-262198
	

	3005-262199
	

	3005-262200
	

	3005-262201
	

	3005-262202
	

	3005-262203
	

	3005-262204
	

	3005-262205
	

	3005-262206
	

	3005-262207
	

	3005-262208
	

	3005-262209
	

	3005-262210
	

	3005-262211
	

	3005-262212
	

	3005-262213
	

	3005-262214
	

	3005-262215
	



	3
	
	2023
	01
	13
	73




	000432
	2
	
	3005-262900
	

	3005-262901
	

	3005-262902
	

	3005-262903
	

	3005-262904
	

	3005-262905
	

	3005-262906
	

	3005-262907
	

	3005-262908
	

	3005-262909
	

	3005-262910
	

	3005-262911
	

	3005-262912
	

	3005-262913
	

	3005-262914
	

	3005-262915
	

	3005-262916
	

	3005-262917
	

	3005-262918
	

	3005-262919
	

	3005-262920
	

	3005-262921
	



	3
	
	2023
	01
	13
	73




	000433
	2
	
	3005-264212
	

	3005-264213
	

	3005-264214
	

	3005-264215
	

	3005-264216
	

	3005-264217
	

	3005-264218
	

	3005-264219
	

	3005-264220
	

	3005-264221
	

	3005-264222
	

	3005-264223
	

	3005-264224
	

	3005-264225
	

	3005-264226
	

	3005-264227
	

	3005-264228
	

	3005-264229
	



	3
	
	2024
	01



	4
	
	2023
	01

	2024
	01




	000434
	2
	
	3005-264522
	

	3005-264523
	



	3
	
	2024
	01



	4
	
	2023
	01

	2024
	01




	000435
	2
	
	3005-264524
	

	3005-264525
	

	3005-264526
	

	3005-264527
	

	3005-264528
	

	3005-264529
	

	3005-264530
	

	3005-264531
	

	3005-264532
	

	3005-264533
	

	3005-264534
	

	3005-264535
	

	3005-264536
	

	3005-264537
	

	3005-264538
	



	3
	
	2024
	01
	13



	4
	
	2023
	01

	2024
	01
	13




	000436
	2
	
	3005-265049
	

	3005-265050
	



	3
	
	2024
	01



	4
	
	2023
	01

	2024
	01




	000437
	2
	
	3005-265468
	



	3
	
	2024
	01



	4
	
	2023
	01

	2024
	01




	000438
	2
	
	3005-265469
	

	3005-265470
	

	3005-265471
	

	3005-265472
	

	3005-265473
	

	3005-265474
	

	3005-265475
	

	3005-265476
	

	3005-265477
	

	3005-265478
	



	3
	
	2024
	01
	13




	000439
	2
	
	3005-265693
	

	3005-265694
	

	3005-265695
	

	3005-265696
	

	3005-265697
	

	3005-265698
	



	3
	
	2024
	01









	2023-24 Biggs Unified School District MOU With Tehama Co Induction Program - Signed
	Ag CTE Incentive Grant
	June 2023 Policy Updates
	Resolution- BES ASB Change Signatories Self Help Bank
	BL Consulting Services Agreement
	Decomissioned Vehicles 6-5-2023
	Sheet1

	CBO 2023-25 Contract Attachment
	CBO Contract Cover Sheet
	CBO Contract Dyer
	11. incorporation of government code sections


	BUTA Attachment
	BUTA Public Disclosure 23-25
	BUTA Agreement
	BUTA Salary Schedule 23-25

	Conf-Class Attachment
	Conf-Class Public Disclosure
	Conf-Class Mngt Contract
	Conf-Class Salary Schedule

	Cert Manage Attachment
	Cert Manage Public Disclosure 23-25
	23-25 CertMgmt Salary Schedule
	A
	PYSCHOLOGIST
	LICENSED SPEECH THERAPIST
	Effective 8/1/23


	Project Way Finder
	NWEA MAP Growth
	SPARK Proposal_GOPHER
	Art-Music Block Grant Amended Plan
	Arts and Music Cover Sheet
	Arts, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant- Amended Plan

	Learning Recovery Block Grant Amended Plan
	Learning Recovery Cover Sheet
	Learning Recovery Block Grant Amended Plan 8-9-2023

	Resolution- BHS ASB Change Signatories Self Help Bank
	CSEA Attachment
	CSEA Public Disclosure
	CSEA Agreement 23-25
	CSEA Salary Schedule 23-25

	Baker Ag Agreement
	Boyes Ag Agreement
	Info Item 15 A
	Info Item Pg. 1 Actuarial Services
	Info Item Pg. 2 DFA GASB 75 Supplement 2023

	23-24 Calendar
	Calendar 2023-2024




